
Conference & Meeting Logistic Support  
Responses to Questions/Comments I 

 
 

1) Are vendors expected to reside in one part of the US, or does that matter? 

      Response: Since conference/meeting support will take place in the 48 contiguous United States  
plus, the District of Columbia, vendors are not expected to reside in one part of the U.S.  
 

2) Will the proposal allow for travel and lodging for the set-up of events?  
 
Response: Travel and lodging for the set-up of events, conferences and/or meetings will be 
determined by the operating administration and/or bureau order contracting officer.   

 
3) Please confirm this effort is a new requirement. If this is a prior effort, who is the current 

incumbent and what is the contract number? 
 
Response: This effort is a new department-wide requirement for the Department of 
Transportation (DOT). There is not a prior contract number or incumbent.  
 

4) Does this require international travel? 
 
Response: International travel is not required for this requirement. The conference, meeting and 
event support will be performed in the 48 contiguous United States plus the District of Columbia. 
 

5) Has a request for proposals (RFP) been released for this opportunity?  
 
Response: Although a PRE-SOLICITATION notice has only been posted alerting industry of the 
requirement, the RFP will be released for this opportunity. 
 

6) Will this be released as an RFP or a request for quote (RFQ) or possibly simplified acquisition? 
 

Response: When the solicitation is released, the requirement will be posted as an RFP.  
 

7) Will the agency be utilizing the Service Contract Act (SCA) on this effort? If so, what are the 
hourly rates from the Wage Determination for each position? If so, please identify the Occupation 
Code(s)/Title(s) for each position. 
 
Response: Since operating administration and/or bureau will issue task orders, the order 
contracting officer will identify if the SCA will be utilized for each position, occupation code(s), 
title(s). 
 
 
 



8) Will there be a page limit for the technical response? 
 
Response: Once the solicitation package is posted, the page limit for the technical response will 
be identified. 
 

9) Is the Government considering the 8(a) programs along with SDVOSB designation? 
 
Response: Currently, the government is just considering the SVOSB designation. If any other 
designations are considered, this will be identified when the solicitation is posted. 
 

10) Will the agency require vendors include resumes for responses upon submission? 
 
Response: The solicitation for the Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) contract and the 
request for task order quotes and/or proposals will identify whether resumes shall be included for 
responses upon submission. 
 

11) If the procurement becomes an official solicitation, will the tasks be broken up into multiple 
contracts or will it all be under one big single contract? 
 
Response:  Once the solicitation package is posted, tasks will be under one single indefinite 
delivery indefinite quantity (IDIQ) contract. 
 

12) Did the previous awardee sub-contract with another company? If so, how many companies?  And 
what were their names? 
 
Response: Since this is a new department-wide opportunity, there is not a previous awardee or 
sub-contractor. 
 

13) How many events were there per year?  
 
Response: Since there is not a previous awardee or sub-contractor that was issued a department-
wide contract, the number of events and conferences per year cannot be determined.  
 

14) What was the average cost of each event including transportation, lodging, food, etc. 
 
Response: Since there is not a previous awardee or sub-contractor that was issued a department-
wide contract, the average cost of each event including transportation, lodging, food, etc. cannot 
be determined. 
 

15) How many events were not at the agency’s facility? 
 
Response: Since there is not a previous awardee or sub-contractor that was issued a department-
wide contract, the number of events not held at agency facilities is not available and cannot be 
determined.   



16) What was the average number of attendances at the events? 
 
Response: Since there is not a previous awardee or sub-contractor that was issued a department-
wide contract, the average number of attendances at the events and conferences cannot be 
determined.  

 
17) How many meetings for each bureau? 

 
Response: Since there is not a previous awardee or sub-contractor that was issued a department-
wide contract, the number of meetings/conferences for each operating administration and bureau 
cannot be determined. 
 

18) How far out will the contractor know about the meeting/conference? 
 
Response: Since the advance notice about the meeting/conference cannot be determined, the 
operating administration and/or bureau will issue a task order request for proposals/quotes.  
  

19) Under conference/event planner in the performance work statement, website support and multi-
media meeting coordination are included. Please explain what that means? Will the contractor 
need to link up with the hotel/agency’s IT department? Will there be a pass key that attendees can 
log into/sign up? 

 
Response: If required, website support means routine and on-demand updates to a particular 
website regarding site security for site users/visitors and multi-media meeting coordination means 
collaborating with the operating administration and/or bureau and place of performance to 
schedule audio/visual equipment or meeting rooms. The operating administration and/or bureau 
order contracting officer will inform contractor(s) by issuing a request for task quote/proposal 
which will identify the place of performance (Ex. DOT facility or hotel) and whether attendees 
need a pass key or if attendees need to log-in/sign-in. 
 

20) Under the section Technical Assistance, what is meant by, “tasks may include technical 
assistance in reports and policy papers?’’  
 
Response: Under the Technical assistance section, technical assistance in reports and policy 
papers maybe identified as deliverables that shall be submitted during performance and/or at 
performance completion if required by the operating administration and/or bureau. 

 
21) Is this new work? If so, is there a contractor currently performing this work? 

 
Response: This is a new department-wide requirement. There is not a contractor or contractors 
performing this work under another department-wide contract vehicle.   
 
 
 



22) How many full-time equivalents (FTEs) are required? 
 
Response: When the request for task order proposal is issued by the operating administration 
and/or bureau, the FTEs will be determined. 
 

23) Does the contract have a “Not to Exceed” dollar amount? 
 
Response: Once the solicitation is posted, the contract and task order will identify the minimum 
dollar limitation and maximum dollar ceiling.  
 

24) When do you anticipate a contractor to start performing the work? 
 
Response: Since a single or multiple IDIQ contract will be issued for the requirement, the 
anticipated start for performing the tasks will be determined after the operating administration 
and/or bureau issues a task order(s).    
 

25) Does DOT have existing facilities to perform this work? 
 
Response: Although DOT has facilities to perform this work, the requirement is not limited to 
these facilities. The conferences, meetings and/or events can be heldd in the 48 contiguous United 
States plus the District of Columbia. 
 

26) Is the space adequate and enhanced (all required phone, internet, projection systems, IT hardware 
and software, audio/visual equipment, etc.) to meet mission needs?  
 
Response: After the operating administration and/or bureau issues a request for task order 
proposal/quote, the contractor will coordinate with the order contracting officer to determine 
whether the space is enhanced and adequate. 
 

27) When are bids due and is there a page limit? 
 
Response: The solicitation package will provide interested vendors with the response close date 
and the page limit.   
 

28) When will DOT make an award decision? 
 
Response: Since this is only a PRE-SOLICITATION notice, there is not a definitive date when 
the award will be issued. Any further information will be posted under the notice in betaSAM. 
 

29) Will the request for proposal (RFP) include a request for quote (RFQ) for a project management 
(PM) team? For example, the Federal Transit Administration’s Blanket Purchase Agreement 
SOW for “Logistical/Conference Planning Support Services” included 84,000 hours of labor 
services in CLIN 0001 for a PM team (over 5 years). 

 



Response: Since a single or multiple IDIQ contract will be issued, the annual hour requirement 
for a potential PM team will be determined by the operating administration and/or bureau order 
contracting officer.  
 

30) Is the PM team requirement funded as firm fixed price labor hours, or time and materials? 
 
Response: If a PM team is required, the operating administration and/or bureau order contracting 
officer will determine funding, labor hours or time and materials through the request for task 
order quote/proposal.   
 

31) What is the annual hour requirement for the PM team (e.g. 1880 hours?)  
 
Response: Since a single or multiple IDIQ contract will be issued, the annual hour requirement 
for the PM team will be determined by the operating administration and/or bureau order 
contracting officer.  
 

32) Is there an incumbent performing all or part of this work? If so, does the government expect the 
new Contractor to maintain any of the current employees? 
 
Response: There is not an incumbent performing all or part of the department-wide conference 
and meeting support services.  
 

33) What is the number of workdays the government will permit for transition between the contract 
award until contract start date? 
 
Response: Since a new department-wide contract vehicle will be issued, the number of workdays 
will not be provided for the transition between the contract award and contract start date.   
 

34) Most all the 2021 events listed at https://www.transportation.gov/mission/conferences-and-events 
were virtual in 2021. Is virtual event support implied in the Section 2.1 tasks? 
 
Response: Even though most conferences and events are listed on 
www.transportation.gov/mission/conferences-and-events , the operating administration and/or 
bureau will identify whether the conference, meeting and event support will be virtual when the 
request for task order quote/proposal is issued to the contractor(s). 
 

35) What are the maximum number of Government furnished equipment (GFE) (Ex. desks, 
computers, etc.)? Will the government provide to the project management team? 
 
Response: If GFE is issued, the number and determination will be provided by the operating 
administration and/or bureau when a request for task order quote/proposal is issued. 
 
 
  

http://www.transportation.gov/


36) Are the several DOT bureaus, offices and agencies required to use the IDIQ during the POP?  
 
Response: The DOT operating administrations, bureaus and offices may use the IDIQ contract 
vehicle during the period of performance. 
 

37) The Federal Transit Authority (FTA) blanket purchase agreement (BPA) continues through 2023. 
Will that work be subsumed under this IDIQ? 
 
Response: Since FTA currently has a BPA that continues through 2023, leadership needs to be 
consulted if the FTA contract will be subsumed under the new IDIQ. Feedback will be provided 
in the next version of responses to questions.  
 

38) How many Task Orders are anticipated annually? 
 

Response: The number of task orders annually is unlimited that may be placed during the master 
contract’s ordering period.  
  

39) Is there a minimum number of Task Orders that will be issued annually? 
 
Response: There is not a minimum number of task orders that will be issued annually by the DOT 
operating administrations and/or bureaus. 
 

40) Is there a limit (maximum and minimum) as to how many contractors will be awarded this multi-
source IDIQ Contract? 
 
Response: There is not a limit (minimum and maximum) of the number of contractors that will be 
awarded the IDIQ contract. 
 

41) Are estimated other direct costs (ODC’s) required in the pricing for each Task Order? 
 

Response: When the operating administration and/or bureau issues a request for task order 
quote/proposal, the order contracting officer will determine if estimated ODCs will be required 
for pricing a task order.  
 

42) What is an estimate for the number of conferences/meetings that are typically held per year? 
 
Response: Since this is a new department-wide procurement, the estimate number of 
conferences/meetings typically held per year cannot be determined. 
 

43) Is all the planning work expected to occur at the government client location or will the planning 
work be permitted to be done at the contractor’s location?   
 



Response: When the operating administration and/or bureau issues a request for task order quote 
or proposal, the order contracting officer shall identify whether the government’s client location 
or contractor’s location are expected for the planning work. 
 

44) Does the government have subject matter experts (SME’s) that will be recommended for the 
tasks? 
 
Response: The operating administration and/or bureau order contracting officer shall recommend 
SME’s and/or points of contacts (POCs) for the task order(s) that will be issued.  
 

45) Is a government security clearance required for any CLIN or Task Orders? 
 
Response: The operating administration and/or bureau ordering contracting officer will determine 
if a government security clearance is required for any CLIN or Task Orders. 
 

46) Will Task Orders be rotated amongst Awardees or competitively solicited? If competitive, what is 
the selection criteria?  i. Price? Best value? Or Something else? 
 
Response: Although task orders will be competitively solicited, the government maintains the 
right to sole source task orders which will be determined by the operating administration and/or 
bureau order contracting officer. 

 
47) Will the government maintain the right to sole source TOs? 

 
Response: The government will maintain the right to sole source TOs which will be determined 
by the operating administration and/or bureau ordering contracting officer. 
 

48) Is the program office open to one on one meeting at this time? 
 
Response: Since the PRE-SOLICITATION notice was released informing industry of the 
requirement, one-on-one meetings will be arranged after the solicitation is posted. 
  

49) Does the government expect contractors to submit resumes for the services tasks described in the 
draft PWS, or will technical capability suffice? 
 
Response: The operating administration and/or bureau order contracting officer will determine 
whether resumes for the service tasks or technical capability will suffice.  
 

50) Is the place of performance for task orders expected to be in the Washington, D.C. metro area, or 
nationwide?  If nationwide, can the government supply a list of forecasted locations? 
 
Response: Since the government is unable to supply a list of forecasted locations, the place of 
performance for task orders will take place in the 48 contiguous United States plus the District of 
Columbia and is not limited to DOT agency facilities.  



51) Other than personal skill and education level, will there be any specific training for the personnel 
performing the services that the government will expect the contractor to provide? 
 
Response: The operating administration and/or bureau will inform the contractor(s) through the 
request for task order proposal/quote whether the government requires specific training for 
performing the services that the government expects the contractor to provide.  
 

52) There is an understanding task orders will vary in scope and service. Can the government advise 
if there will be security level requirements for personnel supporting the task orders?   
 
Response: The operating administration and/or bureau order contracting officer will advise the 
contractor if security level requirements are required for personnel supporting the task order.  
 

53) If there are security requirements, can the government advise if the contractor is required to hold 
a Facility Security Clearance (FCL) or just provide cleared personnel? 
 
Response: The ordering operating administration and/or bureau order contracting officer will 
advise the contractor(s) whether cleared personnel or a FCL is required. 
 

54) Is the past performance validated using past performance questionnaire (PPQ)? 
 
Response: Any past performance information will be addressed when the solicitation is posted. 
 

55) Will the government accept past performance based on corporate experience in addition to/or in 
lieu of government contracted performance? 
 
Response: When the solicitation is posted, the government will identify past performance 
acceptance.  
   

56) Will the sub-contractor’s past performance be acceptable? 
 
Response: When the solicitation is posted, the government will address acceptability of sub-
contractor’s past performance.  
 

57) Section 8.3 of the draft PWS states that the Contractor shall develop, maintain, and provide a 
Personnel Staffing Plan for each task order.  Are we expected to have the same Project Manager 
and Site Manager for each task order?  Or can we supply a different Project Manager and site 
manager depending on the task order and location? 
 
Response: The operating administration and/or bureau order contracting officer will determine 
the Personnel Staffing Plan (Ex. Project Manager, Site Manager) for each task order issued. 
 

58) Is the contractor required to search and secure venue (hotel) space or just search and provide the 
options to the government? 



 
Response: The contractor may be required to search and secure venue (Ex. hotel) space and 
provide the government with options. If the information is requested, this will be determined by 
the ordering agency and/or bureau when a request for task order quote/proposal is issued.  
 

59) If the contractor is are required to search and secure the venue, does the government require the 
contractor to pay for the venue upfront and invoice the government? 
 
Response: If the contractor is are required to search and secure the venue, the solicitation will 
identify whether the government requires the contractor to procure the venue upfront or invoice 
the government for the expense.  
 

60) Can you confirm the requirement will be set-aside for Service-disabled veteran owned small 
business (SDVOSB) competition? 
 
Response: The government confirms the requirement will be set-aside for SDVOSB competition. 
 

61) Is this a new requirement? It appears that previously, the operating administrations may have 
procured this support separately and individually, but now it is being solicited under a multiple 
award IDIQ for use by all operating administrations. Is this correct? If not, who is(are) the 
incumbent(s), and what is(are) the contract numbers? 

 
Response: Although operating administrations and/or bureaus have issued separate and individual 
awards, this new requirement seeks to combine the meeting and/or conference support services 
into a department-wide award that does not currently exist.  
 

62) Since the level of effort is not specified in the Draft PWS, will there be a level of effort specified 
when the RFP is released? Will an approximate number of events per year be released with the 
RFP? 

 
Response: Since an IDIQ department wide contract will be issued for this procurement, an 
approximate number of events cannot be determined. 
 

63) In line with the above question, will services primarily be performed at DOT/FAA headquarters? 
Or are services required throughout all 50 states? Is there a percentage breakdown between DC 
area and outside DC? 
 
Response: Services may not primarily be performed at DOT/FAA headquarters. The services can 
be performed throughout the 48 contiguous United States plus the District of Columbia. A 
percentage breakdown between the DC area and outside DC is not available. 
 

64) Since the procurement is a SDVOSB set-aside, is self-certification (per FAR Part 19) under 
Section K (Reps & Certs) how to state the socio-economic status? 

 



Response: Once the RFP is posted, the solicitation will address how vendors shall state the socio-
economic status.  
 

65) Small Businesses may subcontract with “non-similarly situated entities” as per the FAR and SBA. 
However, subcontracting with non-similarly situated entities is limited to 50%. We may 
subcontract with a large business (non-similarly situated entity) to perform the effort. We 
understand the 50% limitation on subcontracting with such an entity.  
 
Since this maybe a multiple award IDIQ, will the 50% apply to each task order, or will it apply to 
the total of all task orders issued under a contractor’s individual IDIQ? The FAR gives this 
discretion to the CO. 

 
Response: Each operating administration and/or bureau order contracting officer will determine 
whether the 50% will apply to each task order issued.  
 

66) Can any update be offered on the status or confirm how this will be competed, the release date, 
competition strategy and contract vehicle? 
 
Response: The government seeks to set-aside the procurement as SDVOSB. The procurement 
will be posted on or around 12/31/2021 and the government intends to issue a single or multiple 
IDIQ contract.  Since the release date of the solicitation/RFP can change, interested vendors are 
advised to check betaSAM for updates. 
 

67) Will the final RFP provide such information on anticipated level of effort to be expended per 
contract base period per requesting administrative "group?" 
 
Response: Each operating administration order contracting officer will provide the information on 
anticipated level of effort through the task order request for quote/proposal   
 

68) When do you anticipate the release of the formal/final RFP for the subject matter opportunity? 
 

Response: Currently, the government anticipates the release of the formal RFP around 
12/31/2021 for the subject matter opportunity. Since the release date of the solicitation/RFP can 
change, interested vendors are advised to check betaSAM for updates. 
 

69) Is the government open to receiving recommended inputs for the PWS? 
 
Response: During the PRE-SOLICITATION stage, the government will not accept recommended 
inputs for the PWS.  
 

70) Please confirm if the proposal due date is 10/31/2021?   
 

Response: The close date of 10/31/2021 pertains only to the PRE-SOLICITATION notice. Under 
this notice, vendors are not required to submit proposals. 



71) Does the supporting firm need to have an active SDVOSB status in the VA cVe system? 
 
Response: Interested vendors must be registered and have and active SDVOSB status in 
betaSAM. See www.betaSAM.gov.  
 

72) Will an updated PWS and/or RFP will be posted for the procurement?   
 
Response: An updated PWS and RFP will be posted for the procurement.  
 

73) Does the government have availability to meet about the opportunity?  
 
Response: Since the PRE-SOLICITATION notice informs industry of the requirement, one-on-
one meetings will be arranged after the solicitation is posted. 
 

74) What are some of the challenges of this requirement currently?  
 
Response: Currently, there are not any challenges for this requirement. 
 

75) Does the government seek to solidify a contractor before the end of the fiscal year? 
 
Response: The government seeks to issue an IDIQ single or multiple awards before the end of 
fiscal year (FY) 2022. 
  

76) Will the contractor need to provide team members on site at DOT? If so, historically, how many 
team members have been provided for this requirement? How many hours per were needed per 
team member? 
 
Response: The number of team members, hours per week and whether team members are 
required on site at DOT or any other location will be determined by the operating administration 
and/or bureau when a request for task order quote/proposal is issued. 
 

77) Is there a possibility that this requirement could be contracted through a particular vehicle? 
 
Response: The government seeks to issue an indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity contract 
(IDIQ) vehicle for this requirement 
 

78) Is there a specified budget for this requirement? 
 
Response: Since an IDIQ contract will be issued for the requirement, a budget is not applicable. 
The operating administration and/or bureau will determine the specified budget for each task 
order.   
 

79) Is the opportunity set to be released within the next week or so, or has the release date been 
pushed beyond that time frame? 

http://www.betasam.gov/


Response: Since the solicitation package must be reviewed by leadership and Maritime 
Administration (MARAD) legal, the solicitation package may change to be released on or around 
the specified close date in betaSAM. 
 

80) As of now the solicitation is scheduled to be released as a SDVOSB, Firm-Fixed Price IDIQ, 
under NAICS code 541611, has any of this information changed? Has the funding information for 
this opportunity changed? 
 
Response: The government anticipates releasing the solicitation as a SDVOSB Firm-Fixed Price 
IDIQ under NAICS Code 541611. If a single or multiple IDIQ contract is issued, the contract will 
not contain funding. The operating administration and/or bureau will be responsible for 
addressing funding when task order(s) are issued.  
 

 
 


